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NZ
5,000 3.30 3.00
5,000 5 1.65 1.50
5 10 1.10 1.00
10 0.55 0.50
5 2.20 2.00
5 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 1.10 1.00
100 0.55 0.50
1.34
1.34

0.1

80,000

34/183

67,200

NZ



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12 78,686
0.4

12 314,747

8,400
12 78,018

12,000
0.02
0.0125
12 33,401
0.22
12 173,111
0.5
0.1

12 393,182 78,686
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59,722.49
NZ
142,295.03
87,473.35
12 66,962
()
()
)
20.315 15.315 2038

20 15
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90
2022
4,704,375 8.30
4,635,993 8.18
4,613,780 8.14
4,374,274 7.72
3,973,501 7.01
3,595,551 6.34
3,313,210 5.85
2,726,500 4.81
1,755,313 3.10
1,451,337 2.56
1,302,500 2.30
1,264,787 2.23
1,092,000 1.93
727,585 1.28
722,206 1.27
4,141,046 7.31
44,393,958 78.34
12,276,833 21.66
56,670,791 100.00
( 6,936 )
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2022
) ( ) | ( )
)

Republic of South

1 |Africa Government 4.300f 2028 10 12 usb 3,000,000 2,930,074| 2,899,887| 5.12
International Bond
Turkey Government

2 ] 6.125| 2028 10 24 usb 3,000,000 3,060,450| 2,736,983| 4.83
International Bond
Indonesia Government

3 ] 6.750] 2044 1 15 usb 2,000,000 2,469,000| 2,640,134| 4.66
International Bond
Colombia Government

4 ) 7.375| 2037 9 18 usb 1,900,000 2,437,789| 2,155,577| 3.80
International Bond

5 |Petroleos Mexicanos 6.875| 2026 8 4 usb 2,000,000 2,183,000| 2,096,274| 3.70
Brazilian Government

6 ) 5.625| 2047 2 21 usb 2,200,000 2,017,237| 2,081,750| 3.67
International Bond
Turkey Government

7 ] 11.875| 2030 1 15 usb 1,550,000 2,521,739| 1,876,797| 3.31
International Bond
Colombia Government

8 ) 5.625| 2044 2 26 usb 2,000,000 2,164,800| 1,817,924| 3.21
International Bond
Mexico Government

9 ] 5.750] 2110 10 12 usb 1,750,000 1,779,794| 1,787,282| 3.15
International Bond
Argentine Republic

10 |Government 1.125| 2035 7 9 usb 6,019,957 2,519,220 1,783,412| 3.15
International Bond
United States

11 ) 1.875| 2051 11 15 usb 2,000,000 1,905,781 1,755,313| 3.10
Treasury Security
Pananiam Government

12 B 3.750] 2025 3 16 usb 1,700,000 1,827,500| 1,734,000| 3.06
International Bond
Mexico Government

13 } 5.000] 2051 4 27 usb 1,500,000 1,575,615| 1,525,928| 2.69
International Bond
Philippine Government

14 _ 7.750] 2031 1 14 usb 1,000,000 1,457,250 1,302,500] 2.30
International Bond
Brazilian Government

15 _ 8.750| 2025 2 4 usb 1,000,000 1,469,138| 1,170,000| 2.06
International Bond
Argentine Republic

16 |Government 0.500] 2030 7 9 usb 3,380,040 1,613,808| 1,119,638| 1.98
International Bond
Indonesia Government

17 _ 4.625| 2043 4 15 usb 1,000,000 1,047,300| 1,044,815| 1.84
International Bond
Romanian Government

18 ) 4.875| 2024 1 22 usb 1,000,000 1,054,600| 1,034,843| 1.83
International Bond

19 |Petroleos Mexicanos 6.500] 2027 3 13 usb 1,000,000 1,019,200 1,018,531 1.80
Pananiam Government

20 ) 4.500| 2047 5 15 usb 1,000,000 1,067,400 992,500| 1.75
International Bond
Republic of South

21 |Africa Government 4.850| 2027 9 27 usb 900,000 973,620] 905,503| 1.60
International Bond
Republic of South

22 |Africa Government 5.000] 2046 10 12 usb 1,000,000 871,870 830,603| 1.47
International Bond
Brazilian Government

23 ) 4.250| 2025 1 7 usb 800,000 835,607 826,000| 1.46
International Bond
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Peruvian Government

24 ) 3.550] 2051 3 10 usb 800,000 799,120 744,453| 1.31
International Bond
Hungary Government

25 l 7.625| 2041 3 29 usb 500,000 681,047 727,585 1.28
International Bond
Croatia Government

26 ] 5.500| 2023 4 4 usb 700,000 766,850 722,206| 1.27
International Bond
Comision Federal de

27 o 4.875| 2024 1 15 usb 700,000 727,300 718,969| 1.27
Electricidad
Argentine Republic

28 |Government 2.500] 2041 7 9 usb 2,000,000 851,618 692,500 1.22
International Bond
Indonesia Government

29 ] 7.750] 2038 1 17 usb 500,000 767,056 689,325 1.22
International Bond
Peruvian Government

30 ) 4.125| 2027 8 25 usb 500,000 526,100 520,334| 0.92
International Bond

2022

2022
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2022
2012 11 41,975 5,137 122.24 14,961
2013 11 38,108 4,664 107.91 13,207
2014 11 35,901 4,394 114.86 14,058
2015 11 26,131 3,198 112.62 13,784
2016 11 13,387 1,638 116.73 14,287
2017 11 13,322 1,630 127.04 15,548
2018 11 9,593 1,174 116.31 14,235

10 10,981 1,344 127.50 15,605
2019 11 ’ ’ ) ’

1 9,611 1,176 135.46 16,579
2020 11 ’ ’ ) ’

12 7,356 900 128.03 15,670
2021 11 ’ ) ’
2021 8,001 979 130.02 15,913

8,081 989 131.85 16,137

8,065 987 132.96 16,273

8,036 984 133.56 16,346

7,976 976 135.06 16,530

7,736 947 131.21 16,059

10 7,646 936 131.09 16,044

11 7,356 900 128.03 15,670

12 7,255 888 129.99 15,909

2022 6,953 851 125.45 15,354
6,398 783 116.52 14,261

6,348 777 116.61 14,272

2010 19 NZ

2011 22
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2012 11 92,710 8,529 132.28 12,170
2013 11 63,201 5,814 118.73 10,923
2014 11 56,383 5,187 129.33 11,898
2015 11 45,375 4,175 129.27 11,893
2016 11 31,096 2,861 135.28 12,446
2017 11 28,070 2,582 147.99 13,615
2018 11 25,125 2,312 135.05 12,425

10 24,718 2,274 146.47 13,475
2019 11 ’ ’ ) ’

1 21,825 2,008 150.25 13,823
2020 11 ’ ’ ) ’

12 17,370 1,598 141.67 13,034
2021 11 ’ ’ ) ’
2021 19,777 1,819 14402 13,250

19,774 1,819 146.03 13,435

19,559 1,799 147.23 13,545

19,602 1,803 147.90 13,607

19,220 1,768 149.55 13,759

18,322 1,686 145.25 13,363

10 17,898 1,647 145.12 13,351

11 17,370 1,598 141.67 13,034

12 17,623 1,621 143.82 13,231

2022 16,950 1,559 138.80 12,770
14,805 1,362 128.91 11,860

14,556 1,339 128.95 11,863

NZ

2012 11 47,041 4,014 127.73 10,899
2013 11 33,995 2,901 11447 9,768
2014 11 29,120 2,485 125.39 10,700
2015 11 22,697 1,937 126.71 10,812
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2016 11 14,829 1,265 133.42 11,385
2017 11 14,801 1,263 146.41 12,493
2018 11 12,954 1,105 133.96 11,431

10 13,804 1,178 145.24 12,393
2019 11 ’ ’ ) ’

1 13,498 1,152 150.87 12,874
2020 11 ’ ’ ’ ’

12 10,717 914 142 .56 12,165
2021 11 ’ ) ’
2021 11,454 977 144.74 12,351

11,593 989 146.79 12,526

11,898 1,015 148.05 12,633

11,934 1,018 148.73 12,691

11,873 1,013 150.41 12,834

11,497 981 146.08 12,465

10 11,414 974 145.97 12,456

11 10,717 914 142 .56 12,165

12 10,871 928 144 .94 12,368

2022 10,284 878 139.17 11,875
8,815 752 130.03 11,095

8,568 731 130.20 11,110

2012 11 2,921,990 24,662 1,356.53 11,449
2013 11 1,728,769 14,591 1,239.51 10,461
2014 11 1,430,006 12,069 1,393.31 11,760
2015 11 1,141,129 9,631 1,447.20 12,214
2016 11 869,417 7,338 1,596.57 13,475
2017 11 701,776 5,923 1,847.06 15,589
2018 11 511,013 4,313 1,767.15 14,915

10 457,984 3,865 2,014.01 16,998
2019 11 ’ ’ T ’

1 463,594 3,913 2,174.27 18,351
2020 11 ’ ’ T ’

12 370,569 3,128 2,141.42 18,074
2021 11 ’ ’ T ’
2020 396,472 3,346 2,119.20 17,886

400,648 3,381 2,157.29 18,208
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397,314 3,353 2,184.45 18,437
394,444 3,329 2,203.47 18,597
396,053 3,343 2,235.82 18,870
383,583 3,237 2,179.99 18,399
10 382,104 3,225 2,186.94 18,458
11 370,569 3,128 2,141.42 18,074
12 374,867 3,164 2,185.61 18,447
2022 361,992 3,055 2,121.06 17,902
335,207 2,829 1,975.40 16,672
328,654 2,774 1,984.58 16,750
012 11 218,098 1,204
2013 11 184,508 1,062
014 11 132,556 1,120
— 120,406 1,094
— 91,124 1,114
017 11 71,244 1,189
2018 11 59,954 1,067
10
2010 11 50,181 1,132
11
2020 11 50,497 1,187
12
— 43,616 1,116
2021 44,374 1,136
44,997 1,151
45,363 1,161
45,554 1,166
46,058 1,179
44,712 1,144
10 44,652 1,143
11 43,616 1,116
12 44,240 1,132
2022 42,660 1,092
39,610 1,014
39,627 1,014
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2012 11 394,429 3,297 129.34 1,081
2013 11 212,269 1,775 118.82 993
2014 11 160,321 1,340 137.20 1,147
2015 11 111,801 935 147.30 1,231

76,44 166. 1,391
2016 11 6,449 639 66.39 39
2017 11 90,599 757 199.71 1,670
2018 11 96,064 803 206.46 1,726

10 121,118 1,013 268.94 2,248
2019 11 ’ ’ ) ’

1 132,405 1,107 307.15 2,568
2020 11 ’ ’ ) ’

12 124,905 1,044 336.76 2,815
2021 11 ’ ’ ) ’
2021 127,014 1,062 310.39 2,595

130,017 1,087 318.58 2,663

130,071 1,087 326.61 2,730

129,896 1,086 332.55 2,780

130,432 1,090 341.16 2,852

125,353 1,048 335.95 2,809

10 127,307 1,064 341.62 2,856
11 124,905 1,044 336.76 2,815
12 120,036 1,004 346.03 2,893
2022 117,813 985 343.10 2,868
104,873 877 307.21 2,568

111,807 935 329.75 2,757
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2012 11 9,674 1,184 113.35 13,873
2013 11 7,068 865 93.93 11,496
2014 11 7,354 900 98.73 12,084
2015 11 5,073 621 69.71 8,532
2016 11 5,731 701 90.73 11,104
2017 11 5,584 683 109.16 13,360
2018 11 3,932 481 86.53 10,590

o 2,973 364 88.23 10,798
2019 11 g . ,

- 894 109 71.09 8.701
2020 11 . ,

L 835 102 65.63 8,032
2021 11 . ,
2021 738 90 67.76 8,293

778 95 71.48 8,748

970 119 75.27 9,212

953 117 73.91 9,046

973 119 75.50 9,240

891 109 69.10 8,457

10 851 104 66.94 8,193

11 835 102 65.63 8,032

12 825 101 67.86 8,305

2022 844 103 69.42 8.496
800 98 66.94 8,193

876 107 73.30 8,971

2012 11 8,733 1,069 130.62 15,987
2013 11 8,996 1,101 101.89 12,470
2014 11 7,605 931 102.60 12,557
2015 11 4,698 575 86.06 10,533
2016 11 4,254 521 91.50 11,199
2017 11 4,138 506 102.86 12,589
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2018 11 2,860 350 90.30 11,052

10 2,584 316 90.69 11,100
2019 11 ’ ’

1 2,624 321 101.98 12,481
2020 11 ’ ’

12 2,202 270 92.33 11,300

2021 11

2021 2,465 302 102.44 12,538

2,494 305 103.64 12,684

2,426 297 101.73 12,451

2,386 292 100.04 12,244

2,399 294 100.60 12,312

2,302 282 96.52 11,813

10 2,392 293 100.29 12,274

11 2,202 270 92.33 11,300

12 2,287 280 95.91 11,738

2022 2,144 262 89.90 11,003

2,052 251 86.04 10,530

2,115 259 89.08 10,903
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2011 12 2012 11 18.24

2012 12 2013 11 1172

2013 12 2014 11 6-44

2014 12 2015 11 1.95

2015 12 2016 11 3-65

2016 12 2017 11 8.83

2017 12 2018 11 8.45
10

2018 12 2019 11 9-62
11

2019 12 2020 11 6.24
12

2020 12 2021 11 >-49
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2011 12 2012 11 22.07

2012 12 2013 11 1024

2013 12 2014 11 8.93

2014 12 2015 11 0-05

2015 12 2016 11 4.65

2016 12 2017 11 9-40

2017 12 2018 11 8.74
10

2018 12 2019 11 8.40
11

2019 12 2020 11 258
12

2020 12 2021 11 511

NZ

2011 12 2012 11 20.34

2012 12 2013 11 10.38

2013 12 2014 11 9-54

2014 12 2015 11 1.05

2015 12 2016 11 5-30

2016 12 2017 11 974

2017 12 2018 11 8.50
10

2018 12 2019 11 8.42
11

2019 12 2020 11 3.88
12

2020 12 2021 11 >-51

2011 12 2012 11 28.72
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2012 12 2013 11 8.63

2013 12 2014 11 12.41

2014 12 2015 11 387

2015 12 2016 11 10.32

2016 12 2017 11 1569

2017 12 2018 11 4.33
10

2018 12 2019 11 13.97
11

2019 12 2020 11 7.9
12

2020 12 2021 11 1.°1

2011 12 2012 11 17.58

2012 12 2013 11 11.79

2013 12 2014 11 548

2014 12 2015 11 2.32

2015 12 2016 11 1.83

2016 12 2017 11 6.73

2017 12 2018 11 10.26
10

2018 12 2019 11 6.09
11

2019 12 2020 11 4.86
12

2020 12 2021 11 5-98

54/183



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2011 12 2012 11 26.30

2012 12 2013 11 8.13

2013 12 2014 11 15-47

2014 12 2015 11 7.36

2015 12 2016 11 12.96

2016 12 2017 11 20.03

2017 12 2018 11 3.38
10

2018 12 2019 11 30.26
11

2019 12 2020 11 14.21
12

2020 12 2021 11 9-64

2011 12 2012 11 7-18

2012 12 2013 11 17.13

2013 12 2014 11 >-11

2014 12 2015 11 29.39

2015 12 2016 11 30.15

2016 12 2017 11 20.31

2017 12 2018 11 20.73
10

2018 12 2019 11 1.9
11

2019 12 2020 11 19.43
12

2020 12 2021 11 768
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2011 12 2012 11 23.11

2012 12 2013 11 22.00

2013 12 2014 11 0.70

2014 12 2015 11 16.12

2015 12 2016 11 6.32

2016 12 2017 11 12.42

2017 12 2018 11 12.21
10

2018 12 2019 11 0.43
11

2019 12 2020 11 12.45
12

2020 12 2021 11 9.46
100x (a b) b

2010 19 NZ

2011 22
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135,618 159,563 343,396
(135, 618) (159,563) (343,396)
98,228 88,466 353,158
(98,228) (88, 466) (353,158)
33,798 74,388 312,568
(33,798) (74,388) (312,568)
21,976 102,522 232,022
(21,976) (102,522) (232,022)
27,326 144,661 114,687
(27,326) (144,661) (114,687)
19,101 28,918 104,870
(19,101) (28,918) (104,870)
6,139 28,529 82,480
(6,139) (28,529) (82,480)
10 9,110 5,466 86,124
(9,110) (5.466) (86,124)
M 370 15,540 70,954
(370) (15,540) (70,954)
1 510 14,010 57,454
(510) (14,010) (57,454)
501,253 624,179 700,886
(501,253) (624,179) (700, 886)
88,628 257,196 532,318
(88,628) (257,196) (532,318)
14,156 110,496 435,978
(14,156) (110, 496) (435,978)
20,130 105,100 351,008
(20,130) (105,100) (351,008)
15,360 136,508 229,860
(15, 360) (136,508) (229, 860)
11,286 51,476 189,670
(11,286) (51,476) (189,670)
12,445 16,072 186,043
(12,445) (16,072) (186,043)
10 5,807 23,096 168,754
(5,807) (23,096) (168,754)
B 2,870 26,369 145,255
(2,870) (26,369) (145, 255)
1 130 22,777 122,608
(130) (22,777) (122,608)
NZ
190,238 195,640 368,289
(190, 238) (195, 640) (368, 289)
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43,065 114,376 296,978
(43,065) (114,376) (296,978)

29,507 94,257 232,228

(29,507) (94,257) (232,228)

7,289 60,391 179,126

(7,289) (60,391) (179,126)

27,676 95,656 111,146

(27,676) (95, 656) (111,146)

5,553 15,606 101,093

(5,553) (15,606) (101,093)

3,716 8,111 96,698

(3.716) (8,111) (96,698)

10 4,189 5,844 95,043
(4,189) (5,844) (95,043)

" 1,781 7,356 89,468
(1,781) (7,356) (89,468)

1 2,300 16,589 75,179
(2,300) (16,589) (75,179)

1,377,215 789,235 2,154,015

(1,377,215) (789,235) (2,154,015)

81,846 841,137 1,394,724

(81,846) (841,137) (1,394,724)

14,387 382,777 1,026,334

(14,387) (382,777) (1,026,334)

6,090 243,914 788,510

(6,090) (243,914) (788,510)

13,676 257,632 544,554

(13,676) (257,632) (544,554)

12,727 177,339 379,942

(12,727) (177,339) (379,942)

6,706 97,475 289,173

(6,706) (97,475) (289,173)

10 7,397 69,171 227,399
(7,397) (69,171) (227,399)

M 7,416 21,597 213,218
(7.416) (21,597) (213,218)

1 4,206 44,376 173,048
(4,206) (44,376) (173,048)

243,992 300, 245 181,215

(243,992) (300, 245) (181,215)

97,532 104,950 173,797

(97,532) (104,950) (173,797)

1,250 56,732 118,315

(1,250) (56,732) (118,315)

8,800 17,050 110,065

(8,800) (17,050) (110,065)
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17,640 45,895 81,810
(17,640) (45,895) (81,810)

1,600 23,477 59,933

(1,600) (23,477) (59,933)

0 3,738 56,195

) (3,738) (56,195)

10 0 11,866 44,329
) (11,866) (44,329)

B 0 1,800 42,529
) (1,800) (42,529)

1 0 3,451 39,078
) (3.451) (39,078)

3,181,730 3,169,439 3,049,443

(3.181,730) (3.169,439) (3,049,443)

316,944 1,579,870 1,786,517

(316,944) (1,579,870) (1,786,517)

28,840 646,809 1,168,548

(28,840) (646,809) (1,168,548)

24,860 434,397 759,011

(24,860) (434,397) (759,011)

75,001 374,559 459,453

(75,001) (374,559) (459,453)

108,455 114,249 453,659

(108,455) (114,249) (453,659)

92,088 80,447 465,300

(92,088) (80,447) (465,300)

10 75,569 90,521 450,348
(75,569) (90,521) (450,348)

) 42,911 62,184 431,075
(42,911) (62,184) (431,075)

1 19,344 79,515 370,904
(19,344) (79,515) (370,904)

64,181 44,893 85,345

(64,181) (44,893) (85,345)

47,409 57,504 75,250

(47,409) (57,504) (75,250)

32,447 33,210 74,487

(32,447) (33,210) (74,487)

2,450 4,155 72,782

(2.450) (4,155) (72,782)

19,534 29,159 63,157

(19,534) (29,159) (63,157)

10,497 22,504 51,150

(10,497) (22,504) (51,150)

360 6,067 45,443

(360) (6,067) (45,443)
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10 0 11,744 33,699
©) (11,744) (33,699)

M 0 21,131 12,568
) (21,131) (12,568)

1 2,000 1,847 12,721
(2,000) (1,847) (12,721)

64,841 27,011 66,855

(64,841) (27,011) (66,855)

33,626 12,188 88,293

(33,626) (12,188) (88,293)

117 14,290 74,120

117 (14,290) (74,120)

1,730 21,263 54,587

(1,730) (21,263) (54,587)

2,000 10,097 46,490

(2,000) (10,097) (46,490)

1,950 8,210 40,230

(1,950) (8.210) (40,230)

0 8,560 31,670

) (8.560) (31,670)

10 0 3,180 28,490
) (3,180) (28,490)

" 0 2,758 25,732
) (2,758) (25,732)

1 0 1,885 23,847
) (1,885) (23,847)

62/183



(

)

12

12

EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

NZ

63/183



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

64/183



(

(

)

)

EDINETOOOO

Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2022 2023 31
NZ
5,000 3.30 3.00
5,000 5 1.65 1.50
5 10 1.10 1.00
10 0.55 0.50
5 2.20 2.00
5 50 1.65 1.50
50 100 1.10 1.00
100 0.55 0.50

12
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@

(b)

©

(d)
©)

30

11 30

15 1,836
20 1,840 NZ
20 1,707
100 844 1,400
30 251
20 2,448
20 2,448
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150

90

90

(2)2025 11 30

(b

3,000
©

2015 11 30 2015 18 2020 11 30 2020 17 2025
11 30

10

90
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23 103
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2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2.3,4 2,327,927 284,914,986 5,680,366 695,219,995
7.8 62,999,207  7,710,472,945 80,325,391 9,831,024,604
2.5 816,054 99,876,849 885,184 108,337,670
2.4 262 32,066 9,531 1,166,499
66,143,450  8,095,296,846 86,900,472  10,635,748,768
7.8 (2,812,486)  (344,220,162) (633,163) (77,492,820)
2.4 (286,147) (35,021,531) (47,032) (5,756,246)
2.6 (145,114) (17,760,502) (157,229) (19,243,257)
(3,243,747)  (397,002,195) (837,424) (102,492,323)
62,899,703  7,698,294,650 86,063,048  10,533,256,445
57,454 70,954
122,608 145,255
75,179 89,468
173,048 213,218
39,078 42,529
5 370,904 431,075
5 12,721 12,568
5 23,847 25,732
5 128.03 15,670 135.46 16,579
5 141.67 13,034 150.25 13,823
142.56 150.87
5 12,165 12,874
2,141.42 2,174.27
5 18,074 18,351
5 1,116 1,187
336.76 307.15
5 2,815 2,568
5 65.63 8,032 71.09 8,701
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5 92.33 11,300 101.98 12,481

BNY

2022
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2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30

2.5 3,610,837 441,930,340 3,849,725 471,167,843

2.5 266 32,556 3,659 447,825
2.8,9  (10,489,146)  (1,283,766,579)  (1,595,103) (195,224,656)

(6,878,043) (841,803,683) 2,258,281 276,391,012
3 (78.686) (9,630,380) (85,317) (10,441,948)
3 - - (12,937) (1,583,359)
3 (314,747) (38,521, 885) (341,274) (41,768,525)
3 (78,018) (9,548,623) (64,667) (7,914,594)
3 (33,401) (4,087,948) (27,576) (3,375,027)
3 (173,111) (21,187,055) (174,848) (21,399, 647)
3 (393,182) (48,121,545) (426,591) (52,210,472)
3 (78,686) (9,630,380) (85,317) (10,441,948)
(24,007) (2,938,217) (17,876) (2,187,844)
3 (25,565) (3.128,900) (21,659) (2,650,845)

(17,390) (2,128,362) 9,590 1,173,720
(1,216,793) (148,923,295)  (1,248,472) (152,800, 488)

(8,094, 836) (990,726,978) 1,009,809 123,590,524
- - (287) (35,126)
- - (287) (35,126)

(8,094, 836) (990,726,978) 1,009,522 123,555,398
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2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30

86,063,048 10,533, 256,445 94,919,156  11,617,155,503

(8,094,836) (990,726,978) 1,009,522 123,555,398

5 1,848,875 226,283,811 3,225,141 394,725,007
5 (16,151,145)  (1,976,738,637)  (12,887,498) (1,577,300,880)
2.12 (766,239) (93,779,991) (203,273) (24,878,582)
(15,068,509)  (1,844,234,817)  (9,865,630) (1,207,454,456)

62,899,703 7,698,294, 650 86,063,048  10,533,256,445
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2021 11 30

FRS 102

FRS 102

2.2

2.3

2.4

2021 11 30 2020 11 30

2.5

2.6

2.7
FRS 102
FRS 102 IAS 39
FRS 102 IFRS
IAS 39 IFRS FRS 102
IAS 39
FRS 102
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2020 11 30 12,937 2020
11 30
BNY
80,000
0.10
78,686 2020 11 30 85,317
16,591 2020 11 30 19,716
0.4
314,747 2020 11 30 341,274 24,920
2020 11 30 28,202
12,000
0.02
0.0125
33,401 2020 11 30 27,576 7,089
2020 11 30 6,479
0.22
173,111 2020 11 30 174,848
13,060 2020 11 30 15,211
BNY
8,400
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2021
2020

2021

2021

11
11

11

11

2020 11

2020

2020 11

30
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30

30

2020 11 30
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17,453

78,018 2020 11 30 64,667
0.5
393,182 2020 11 30 426,591 29,238
0.1
78,686 2020 11 30 85,317 5,896

25,565 2020 11 30 21,659 1,748
9
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2,327,927 5,680,366
2,327,927 5,680,366
NZ

145,255 89,468 213,218 42,529 431,075 12,568 25,732
130 2,300 4,206 - 19,344 2,000 -
(22,777)  (16,589) (44,376)  (3,451) (79,515) (1,847) (1,885)
122,608 75,179 173,048 39,078 370,904 12,721 23,847
141.67 142.56 2,141.42 1,116  336.76 65.63 92.33
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NZ
2020 11 30
2019 11 30
86,124 168,754 95,043 227,399 44,329 450,348 33,699 28,490
370 2,870 1,781 7,416 - 42,911 - -
(15,540)  (26,369)  (7,356) (21,597)  (1,800) (62,184) (21,131) (2,758)
2020 11 30
70,954 145,255 89,468 213,218 42,529 431,075 12,568 25,732
2020 11 30
135.46 150.25 150.87 2,174.27 1,187 307.15 71.09 101.98
15
21
50
a)
b)
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2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30
170,239 238,994 2021 12 17 733
44,511,333 390,803 2021 12 17 1,379
5,299 599,827 2021 12 17 14
NZ
146,209 2021 12 17 477
99,690
174,314 2,187,006 2021 12 17 11,058
30,609 42,971 2021 12 17 132
19,600 109,964 2021 12 17 204
13,997
17,766,445 12,894,600 2021 12 17 (293,750)
NZ
11,020,812 7,732,373 2021 12 17 (254,030)
127,478,547 11,238,380 2021 12 17 (1,731,354)
3,280,744 2,381,111 2021 12 17 (54,259)
4,850,707 867,051 2021 12 17 (11,480)
311,838 5,078,026 2021 12 17 (4,261)
381,073,599 24,182,593 2021 12 17 (463,352)
(2,812,486)
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2020 11 30
21,739,007 15,800,190 2020 12 18 221,715
NZ
13,461,222 9,292,789 2020 12 18 168,131
24,101 183,216 2020 12 18 854
3,575,875 2,598,992 2020 12 18 36,478
85,707 1,313,654 2020 12 18 1,049
462,671,270 29,774,629 2020 12 18 43,067
471,294
50,286,352 484,352 2020 12 18 (1,868)
NZ
10,542 15,075 2020 12 18 (52)
132,390,924 17,415,417 2020 12 18 (617,065)
80,883 649,397 2020 12 18 (1,549)
4,809,166 905,319 2020 12 18 (12,617)
11,368 61,305 2020 12 18 (12)
(633,163)
2021 11 30
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2021
14,704,420 - 14,704,420 735,221
14,704,420 - 14,704,420 735,221
836,175 - 836,175 41,809
836,175 - 836,175 41,809
386,732 - 386,732 19,337
386,732 - 386,732 19,337
7,174,478 - 7,174,478 358,724
7,174,478 - 7,174,478 358,724
9,425,657 - 9,425,657 471,283
9,425,657 - 9,425,657 471,283
23,284,104 - 23,284,104 1,164,205
23,284,104 - 23,284,104 1,164,205
2020 11 30
2020

18,654,134 - 18,654,134 932,707
18,654,134 - 18,654,134 932,707
881,323 - 881,323 44,066
881,323 - 881,323 44,066
482,247 - 482,247 24,112
482,247 - 482,247 24,112
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9,449,955 - 9,449,955
9,449,955 - 9,449,955
16,827,733 - 16,827,733
16,827,733 - 16,827,733
29,810,698 - 29,810,698
29,810,698 - 29,810,698
8.90
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2021 11 30
62,985,209 8.90
5,605,684
2021 11 30

2,327,927 - - - 2,327,927
- 9,106,813 53,878,396 13,998 62,999,207
) ; - 816,054 816,054
- - - 262 262

2,327,927 9,106,813 53,878,396 830,314 66,143,450
- - - (2,812,486) (2,812,486)
- - - (286,147) (286,147)
- - - (145,114) (145,114)
- - - (3,243,747) (3,243,747)

2,327,927 9,106,813 53,878,396  (2,413,433) 62,899,703

2020 11 30
79,854,097 9.11
7,274,708
2020 11 30

5,680,366 - - - 5,680,366
- 14,946,126 64,907,971 471,294 80,325,391
. - - 885,184 885,184
- - - 9,531 9,531

5,680,366 14,946,126 64,907,971 1,366,009 86,900,472
- - - (633,163) (633,163)
- - - (47,032) (47,032)
- - - (157,229) (157,229)
. - - (837,424) (837,424)
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5,680,366 14,946,126 64,907,971 528,585 86,063,048
)
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 2021 2020 2020
18,271,366 29.05 27,142,387 31.54
8,932,094 14.20 9,294,201 10.80
10,143,965 16.12 10,986,644 12.76
2,866,875 4.56 3,145,000 3.65
1,438,750 2.29 5,287,097 6.15
4,777,815 7.59 2,418,830 2.81
16,554,344 26.33 19,375,094 22.52
] ; 2,204,844 2.56
62,985,209 100.14 79,854,097 92.79
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
6.66% 5.23
93.34% 94.77
100.00 100.00
®
10
14
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
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2021 11 30
(2,812,486) -
(286,147) ]
(145,114) ]
(62,899,703) -
(66,143, 450) ;
2020 11 30
(633,163) -
(47,032) -
(157,229) ]
(86,063,048) ]
(86,900,472) }
©
2021 11 30
2021 11 30 13,998 2020 11 30
471,294
S&p AA
a2 AA
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30 S&p
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2021 11 30 2020 11 30

A3 - 56
Aaa - 4.19
B2 17.90 16.52
B3 0.95 0.64
Bal 1.18 12.85
Ba2 15.27 21.63
Ba3 4.97 13.93
Baal 15.89 4.24
Baa2 30.38 13.60
Baa3 11.72 -
Caal 1.88 2.63

100.14 92.79

@
COVID-19
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
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- 2,204,844
- 2,204,844
2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
4,200,120 4,176,229
58,785,089 73,473,024
13,998 471,294
62,999,207 78,120,547
(2,812,486) (633,163)
(2,812,486) (633,163)
2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2.7
2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
(862,725) (3,215,741)
(173,828) (3,053,237)
(1,036,553) (6,268,978)
(5,862,382) 4,780,888
(3,590,211) (107,013)
(9,452,593) 4,673,875
(10,489, 146) (1,595,103)
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
BNY
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BNY
2021 11 30 2020 11 30
2021 11 30 2020 11 30

57,454 70,954 100

122,608 145,255 100

NZ 75,179 89,468 100
173,048 213,218 100

39,078 42,529 100

370,904 431,075 100

12,721 12,568 100

23,847 25,732 100

11

12
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2021 11 30
2021 11 30 2021 11 30
1.410338 1.326206
5.648650 5.351041
113.545000 108.966370
1.473405 1.409280
13.277750 8.396243
16.023750 14.702480
2020 11 30
2020 11 30 2020 11 30
1.357128 1.464057
5.386150 5.064594
104.275000 107.229959
1.422880 1.550080
7.822250 6.864548
15.476250 16.417762
13
14
2021 11 30
2020 11 30 2020 11 30
15
16.
2022 24
2021 12 21 Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond "REGS" 5.625% 04/04/2042 2022
25 Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond "REGS® 5.875% 16/09/2043
17

2022
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2021 11 30
2021 11 30
(2020 11 30 : 4,176,229 )
300,000 Comision Federal de Electricidad "REGS" 4.750% 23/02/2027 329,185 0.52
700,000 Comision Federal de Electricidad "REGS" 4.875% 15/01/2024 745,160 1.18
1,000,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.500% 13/03/2027 1,022,647 1.63
2,000,000 Petroleos Mexicanos 6.875% 04/08/2026 2,103,128 3.34
4,200,120 6.67
(2020 11 30 : 75,677,868 )
3,380,040 Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up
Coupon 0.500% 09/07/2030 1,101,893 1.75
6,019,957  Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up
Coupon 1.125% 09/07/2035 1,818,027 2.89
2,400,000 Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up
Coupon 2.500% 09/07/2041 777,600 1.24
800,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.250% 07/01/2025 842,000 1.34
300,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 4.750% 14/01/2050 258,000 0.41
2,200,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 5.625% 21/02/2047 2,123,000 3.38
300,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 8.250% 20/01/2034 389,625 0.62
1,000,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 8.750% 04/02/2025 1,211,250 1.93
1,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond 5.000% 15/06/2045 909, 405 1.45
2,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond 5.625% 26/02/2044 1,945,122 3.09
1,900,000 Colombia Government International Bond 7.375% 18/09/2037 2,199,132 3.50
700,000 Croatia Government International Bond "REGS®" 5.500%
04/04/2023 740,543 1.18
500,000 Hungary Government International Bond 7.625% 29/03/2041 816,880 1.30
1,500,000 Indonesia Government International Bond “"REGS® 4.350%
08/01/2027 1,677,098 2.67
1,000,000 Indonesia Government International Bond "REGS® 4.625%
15/04/2043 1,147,800 1.83
1,500,000 Indonesia Government International Bond “"REGS® 5.250%
17/01/2042 1,845,015 2.93
2,000,000 Indonesia Government International Bond "REGS® 6.750%
15/01/2044 2,907,618 4.62
900,000 Indonesia Government International Bond “"REGS® 7.750%
17/01/2038 1,354,563 2.15
500,000 Mexico Government International Bond 5.000% 27/04/2051 552,914 0.88
2,500,000 Mexico Government International Bond 7.500% 08/04/2033 3,424,442 5.44
1,750,000 Mexico Government International Bond "GMTN® 5.750%
12/10/2110 1,966,489 3.13
1,700,000 Panama Government International Bond 3.750% 16/03/2025 1,798,125 2.86
1,000,000 Panama Government International Bond 4.500% 15/05/2047 1,068,750 1.70
800,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 3.550% 10/03/2051 794,734 1.26
2,000,000 Peruvian Government International Bond 4.125% 25/08/2027 2,184,556 3.47
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1,000,000 Philippine Government International Bond 7.750% 14/01/2031 1,438,750 2.29
3,000,000 Republic of South Africa Government International Bond
4.300% 12/10/2028 2,986,857 4.75
900,000 Republic of South Africa Government International Bond
4.850% 27/09/2027 933,929 1.48
1,000,000 Republic of South Africa Government International Bond
5.000% 12/10/2046 857,029 1.36
1,000,000 Romanian Government International Bond "REGS® 4.875%
22/01/2024 1,066,607 1.70
400,000 Romanian Government International Bond "REGS®" 5.125%
15/06/2048 454,540 0.72
1,400,000 Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond "REGS" 5.625% 04/04/2042 1,813,981 2.88
3,000,000 Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond "REGS® 5.875% 16/09/2043 4,035,708 6.42
2,600,000 Turkey Government International Bond 4.875% 16/04/2043 1,949,509 3.10
3,000,000 Turkey Government International Bond 6.125% 24/10/2028 2,857,967 4.54
1,550,000 Turkey Government International Bond 11.875% 15/01/2030 1,999,895 3.18
800,000 Ukraine Government International Bond "REGS" 7.375%
25/09/2032 752,872 1.20
600,000 Ukraine Government International Bond "REGS" 7.750%
01/09/2026 600,000 0.95
1,100,000 Ukraine Government International Bond "REGS" 9.750%
01/11/2028 1,182,864 1.88
58,785,089 93.47
7 62,985,209 100.14
6,7 (85,506) (0.14)
62,899,703 100.00
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Statement of Financial Position

Assets

Cash and cash equivaents

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income receivable

Capital units receivable

Total Assets

Liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Capital units payable

Accrued expenses

Total liabilities (excluding net assets attributable to
holders of redeemable participating units)

Net assets attributabl e to holders of redeemable
participating units

Unitsinissue USD

Unitsin issue AUD

Unitsinissue NZD

Unitsinissue ZAR

Unitsin issue JPY

Unitsinissue TRY

Unitsinissue USD (BRL hedged)
Unitsinissue USD (AUD hedged)

Net assets per redeemabl e participating unit USD
Net assets per redeemabl e participating unit AUD
Net assets per redeemabl e participating unit NZD
Net assets per redeemable participating unit ZAR
Net assets per redeemabl e participating unit JPY

Net assets per redeemable participating unit TRY

Net assets per redeemable participating unit USD (BRL

hedged)

Net assets per redeemable participating unit USD (AUD

hedged)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

Vincent Ternier - General Manager

Notes

23,4

7,8
2.5
24

7,8
24
26

On behalf of BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited
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30 November 2021 30 November 2020

usD usD
2,327,927 5,680,366
62,999,207 80,325,391
816,054 885,184
262 9,531
66,143,450 86,900,472
(2,812,486) (633,163)
(286,147) (47,032)
(145,114) (157,229)
(3,243,747) (837,424)
62,899,703 86,063,048

30 November 2021 30 November 2020

57,454 70,954
122,608 145,255
75,179 89,468
173,048 213,218
39,078 42,529
370,904 431,075
12,721 12,568
23,847 25,732
uSD128.03 USD135.46
AUD141.67 AUD150.25
NzZD142.56 NzD150.87
ZAR2,141.42 ZAR2,174.27
JPY 1,116 JPY 1,187
TRY 336.76 TRY307.15
USD65.63 USD71.09
uSsD92.33 USD101.98
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Solely in its capacity as Trustee to Daiwa Fund Series - Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund (Currency Select) - The Tower of

Currency

Date: 7 April 2022
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Statement of Comprehensive Income

For thefinancia For the financia
year ended year ended
30November 2021 30 November 2020
Notes uUsD usD
Income
Bond interest income 25 3,610,837 3,849,725
Bank interest income 25 266 3,659
Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value 289
through profit or loss ' (10,489,146) (1,595,103)
Total (loss)/income (6,878,043) 2,258,281
Operating expenses
Trustee and Administration fees 3 (78,686) (85,317)
Management fees 3 - (12,937)
Investment Management fees 3 (314,747) (341,274)
Sub-Administration fees 3 (78,018) (64,667)
Custody fees 3 (33,401) (27,576)
Management Service Providing Company fees 3 (173,111) (174,848)
Distributor fees 3 (393,182) (426,591)
Agent Company fees 3 (78,686) (85,317)
Audit fees (24,007) (17,876)
Legal fees 3 (25,565) (21,659)
Other fees (17,390) 9,590
Total operating expenses (1,216,793) (1,248,472)
Net (loss)/income (8,094,836) 1,009,809
Bank interest expense - (287)
- (287)
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets atributable to holders of
redeemable participating units from operations (8,094,836) 1,009,522

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

All gains and losses arise solely from continuing operations.
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units

For thefinancia For the financid

year ended year ended
30 November 2021 30 November 2020
uUsDhD uUsD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the beginning of the financia year 86,063,048 94,919,156
(Decrease)/Increase in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemabl e participating units from operations (8,094,836) 1,009,522
Unit Transactions
Issue of redeemabl e participating units 5 1,848,875 3,225,141
Redemption of redeemable participating units 5 (16,151,145) (12,887,498)
Equalisation 212 (766,239) (203,273)
Net decrease in net assets from unit transactions (15,068,509) (9,865,630)
Net assets atributable to holders of redeemable
participating units at the end of the financid year 62,899,703 86,063,048

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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1. Orgenisation

Daiwa Fund Series (the “Trust”) is an open ended umbrella unit trust established by a Declaration of Trust ("Trust Deed")
dated 20 October 2008, under the laws of the Cayman Islands. Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund (Currency Select) - The Tower of
Currency (the “Series Trust”) launched on 19 August 2010 and comprises a separate series of units of the Trust established in
accordance with the Trust Deed and constitutes a sub-trust of the Trust. The Trust is registered as a Mutual Fund under the
Mutua Funds Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands and as such is regulated in accordance with such law.

The Trust has been established as an umbrella unit trust. A separate portfolio or Series Trust can be created and established to
which assets and liabilities attributable to the relevant Series Trust will be applied. Units relating exclusively to each Series
Trust will be issued. The details specific to each Series Trust will be set forth in a separate appendix to the Offering
Memorandum.

The Trust Deed is governed by the laws of the Cayman Islands. All unitholders are entitled to the benefit of, are bound by, and
are deemed to have notice of, the terms of the Trust Deed and any trust deed supplemental thereto. In the event of any conflict
between: (a) the terms of the Offering Memorandum and the relevant Appendix relating to a Series Trust; and (b) the terms of
the Trust Deed and the supplemental trust deed relating to such Series Trust, the terms of the latter documents will prevail.

The Series Trust is denominated in US dollars. Each class of unitsis denominated as follows (being the Class Base currency of
the relevant class of units): USD units are denominated in US dollars; AUD units are denominated in Australian dollars; NZD
units are denominated in New Zealand dollars; ZAR units are denominated in South African rand; JPY units are denominated
in Japanese yen; TRY units are denominated in Turkish lira; USD (BRL Hedged) units are denominated in US dollars; and
USD (AUD Hedged) units are denominated in US dollars.

The investment objective of the Series Trust is to seek to achieve stable returns and a steady rate of growth of its investments.
The Investment Manager will invest for the account of the Series Trust mainly in US dollar denominated bonds issued by
emerging market countries' governments, governmental agencies, state and local authorities (collectively "Emerging Market
Bonds"), although it may also invest in non-US dollar denominated Emerging Market Bonds, bonds issued and/or guaranteed
by the US government, governmental agencies, local authorities and/or supranational entities (collectively "Investable Bonds").
The Investment Manager invests for the account of the Series Trust in forward currency contracts. The Series Trust invests in
forward currency contracts for the purpose of buying and selling underlying shares on the hedge classes. In general, the yield of
US dollar denominated Emerging Market Bonds is comparatively higher than the yield on US Treasury Bonds because the
credit risk of the former is higher than the latter.

Daiwa Asset Management Services Ltd. (Cayman) is the Manager and is responsible under the Trust Deed for the management
of the investment and re-investment of the assets of each Series Trust, the exercise of the power to borrow money in respect of
each Series Trust and for the issue and repurchase of units of each Series Trust.

Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd is the Investment Manager and is responsible for managing the investment and
reinvestment of the assets of the Series Trust.

BNY Meéllon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited is the Trustee and is responsible for operational matters such as
administration and compliance with local regulator and also monitors the Series Trust to ensure compliance with governing
documents. The Trustee has delegated the administration of the Trust to BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated
Activity Company, the Sub-Administrator.

BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company is the Sub-Administrator of the Series Trust pursuant to
the Servicing Agreement with the Trustee and carries out the day-to-day administration of the Series Trust.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation
These annual audited financial statements for the financial year ended 30 November 2021 have been prepared in accordance
with accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered
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Accountants in Ireland, including Financial Reporting Standard (*FRS") 102 "the Financial Reporting standard applicable in

the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland” ("generally accepted accounting practicein Ireland").

The Series Trust has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds that hold a substantial proportion of
highly liquid and fair valued investments under Section 7 of FRS 102 and is not presenting cash flow statements.

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of Preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Series Trust's accounting policies. The estimates and associated
judgements are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that
are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. Management makes estimates and
assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the actual results.

2.2 Financid Instruments at Fair Vaue through Profit or Loss
All instruments classified at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with changes in their fair value
recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on a trade date basis - the date on which the Series Trust commits to
purchase or sell the asset.

The Series Trust derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice in Ireland. A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or has expired.

2.3Cash and Cash Equivaents

Cash and cash eguivaents are valued at face value, with interest accrued where applicable at relevant valuation point on the
relevant business day. Cash equivalents include deposits held at call with banks and other short-term investments in an active
market with original maturities of three days or less.

2.4 Capital Units Receivable and Payable

Capital units receivable and capital units payable represent receivables for issue of units and payables for redemption of units
that have been contracted for but not yet delivered by the financial year end. Redemptions and issues paid after the financial
year end, but based upon financial year end net asset values, are reflected as capital units receivable and capital units payablein
the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020.

2.5Interest Income/Receivable
Bank deposit interest income and bond interest income is accounted for on an effective interest basis.

Interest income due to the Series Trust is reported as interest receivable in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.6Expenses
In accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed, expenses are charged against income on an accruals basis.

2.7Investments

FRS 102 requires a reporting entity in accounting for its financial instruments to apply either @) the full requirements of FRS
102 relating to Basic Financia Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, b) the recognition and measurement provisions of
IAS 39 Financia Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to
Basic Financia Instruments and Other Financial Instruments, or c) the recognition and measurement provisions of IFRS 9
Financial Instruments and IAS 39 (as amended for IFRS 9) and only the disclosure requirements of FRS 102 relating to Basic
Financial Instruments and Other Financial Instruments. The Series Trust has chosen to implement the recognition and
measurement provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments. Recognition and Measurement and only the disclosure requirements
of FRS 102 relating to Basic Financial Instruments and Other Financial |nstruments.
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Quoted

The fair value of investments traded are based on quoted market prices at the Statement of Financial Position date. The
investments are valued at mid price. The quoted market prices used for the financial assets held by the Trust are as at 4.00pm
GMT inlinewith the Trust's Valuation policy.

In the case of an investment which is quoted but for any reason prices on that market may not be available, the value shall be
the probable realisation value which must be estimated with care and in good faith by such competent person as may be
appointed by the Manager and approved for the purpose by the Trustee.

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.7 Investments (continued)

Unquoted

Unquoted securities are priced based on information supplied by independent parties and must be estimated with care and in
good faith by such competent person as may be appointed by the Manager and approved for the purpose by the Trustee. If a
quoted price is not available on a recognised stock exchange or from a broker/dealer for non exchange-traded financial
instruments, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using valuation techniques, including use of recent arm’s length
market transactions, reference to the current fair value of another instrument that is substantially the same, discounted cash
flow techniques, option pricing models or any other valuation technique that provides a reliable estimate of prices obtained in
actual market transactions.

2.8Redlised and Unrealised Gains and Losses

All realised and unrealised gains and losses arising during the financial year are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income in arriving at the increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units from operations for the
financial year. In accordance with the Trust Deed net realised and unrealised gains on investments are not available for
distribution.

2.9Redeemable Participating Units
The Series Trust issues redeemabl e units which are redeemabl e at the holder's options and are classified as aliability.

2.10Distributions to Holders of Redeemable Participating Units
The Trustee retains the discretion to make distributions of such amount (if any) as shall be determined by the Manager, in
which event payment shall be paid first out of income and thereafter out of capital of the Series Trust.

There were no distributions during the financial year ended 30 November 2021 (financial year ended 30 November 2020:
USDNIl).

2.11Functional and Presentationa Currency
The functional currency of the Series Trust is US dollars, which reflects the fact that the majority of the Series Trust's
investments are in US dollars. The presentation currency is US dollars.

2.12Equalisation

An equalisation account is maintained by the Series Trust so that the amount distributed on all classes of units will be the same
for al units of the same type, notwithstanding different dates of issue. It is applied to prevent the dilution of current unitholders
earnings. A sum equal to that part of the issue price of a unit which reflects income (if any) accrued up to the date of issue will
be deemed to be an egualisation payment. It will be treated as repaid to unitholders with the first distribution or accumulation
for the Series Trust to which the unitholder is entitled in the same accounting period as that in which the units are issued.
Equalisation will not be operated in respect of the first issue of units by a Series Trust.

3. Significant Agreements and Transactions with Affiliates

Manager
Daiwa Asset Management Services Ltd. (Cayman) is the Manager of the Series Trust. The Manager will not be entitled to
receive a fee out of the Net Asset Value of the Series Trust.
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During the financia year, the Series Trust incurred management fees of USDNil (30 November 2020: USD12,937) of which
USDNIil (30 November 2020: USDNIl) was unpaid at the financia year end.

Trustee & Administrator

BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited has been appointed Trustee and Administrator to the Series Trust. The
Trustee will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a trustee and administration fee at the rate of 0.10% per
annum of the net asset value of the Series Trust, subject to a minimum fee of USD80,000 per annum, accrued on and calculated
as at each Vauation Day and payable monthly in arrears, provided that this minimum fee requirement does not apply for six
months from the closing day.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred trustee and administration fees of USD78,686 (30 November 2020:
USD85,317) of which USD16,591 (30 November 2020: USD19,716) was unpaid at the financial year end.
3. Significant Agreements and Transactions with Affiliates (continued)

Investment Manager

The Manager has delegated to Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd the Manager's responsibility to manage the investment
and reinvestment of the assets of the Series Trust. The Investment Manager will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the
Series Trust afee at the rate of 0.4% per annum of the net asset value of the Series Trust accrued on and calculated as at each
Vauation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred investment management fees of USD314,747 (30 November 2020:
USD341,274) of which USD24,920 (30 November 2020: USD28,202) was unpaid at the financial year end.

Investment Adviser
Daiwa Asset Management Co. Ltd. acts as Investment Adviser to the Series Trust in Japan and is responsible for providing
discretionary investment advice to the Series Trust.

The Investment Adviser's fee will be payable by the Investment Manager and will not be payable out of the assets of the Series
Trust.

Custodian

The Bank of New York Mellon acts as Custodian of the Series Trust. The Custodian will be entitled to receive out of the assets
of the Series Trust afee at the rate of 0.02% per annum of the value of the assets held in Euromarkets and 0.0125% per annum
of the value of the assets held in the United States markets, subject to a minimum fee of USD12,000 per annum, accrued on and
calculated as at each Vauation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

During the financia year, the Series Trust incurred Custodian fees of USD33,401 (30 November 2020: USD27,576) of which
USD7,089 (30 November 2020: USD6,479) was unpaid at the financial year end.

Management Service Providing Company

The Manager has appointed Daiwa Asset Management Co. Ltd. to act as the Management Service Providing Company. The
Management Service Providing Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust fee with a rate of
0.22% per annum of Net Asset Value of the Series Trust accrued on and calculated as at each Vauation Day and payable
monthly in arrears.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred Management Service Providing Company fees of USD173,111 (30
November 2020: USD174,848) of which USD13,060 (30 November 2020: USD15,211) was unpaid at the financial year end.

Sub-Administrator

The Trustee has appointed BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company, as the sub-administrator of the
Series Trust pursuant to the Servicing Agreement to carry out the day-to-day administration of the Series Trust. The Sub-
Administrator will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee of USD8,400 multiplied by the number of
classes of Unit in issue per annum, accrued on and calculated as at each Vauation Day and payable monthly in arrears. In

105/183



EDINETOOOO
OOo00000000000000000000000000000000(E15791)
Do0000000ooo000dodo

addition, the Sub-Administrator will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust atransaction fee whenever units

are subscribed or repurchased.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred Sub-Administrator's fees of USD78,018 (30 November 2020: USD64,667)
of which USD18,791 (30 November 2020: USD17,453) was unpaid at the financial year end.

Distributor
The Distributor will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.5% per annum of the net
asset value of the Series Trust, accrued on and calculated as at each Valuation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred distributor fees of USD393,182 (30 November 2020: USD426,591) of
which USD29,238 (30 November 2020: USD34,379) was unpaid at the financial year end.

Agent Company
The Agent Company will be entitled to receive out of the assets of the Series Trust a fee at the rate of 0.1% per annum of
the net asset value of the Series Trust, accrued on and calculated as at each Vauation Day and payable monthly in arrears.

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred agent company fees of USD78,686 (30 November 2020: USD85,317) of
which USD5,896 (30 November 2020: USDG6,874) was unpaid at the financial year end.

3. Significant Agreements and Transactions with Affiliates (continued)

Agent Company (continued)

Lega

During the financial year, the Series Trust incurred legal fees of USD25,565 (30 November 2020: USD21,659) of which
USD1,748 (30 November 2020: USD 1,210) was unpaid at the financial year end.

4. Cash and Cash Equivaents

Cash is held with The Bank of New York Mellon at financial year end asfollows:

30 November 2021 30 November 2020

usb usD

Cash at bank 2,327,927 5,680,366
2,327,927 5,680,366

5. Unitsin Issue and NAV Per Unit

30 November 2021
USD (BRL USD (AUD
usD AUD NzD ZAR JPY TRY hedged)  hedged)
Class Class Class Class Class Class Class Class
Unitsin issue 30 November
2020 70,954 145,255 89,468 213,218 42529 431,075 12,568 25,732
Units issued 510 130 2,300 4,206 - 19,344 2,000 -
Units redeemed (14,0100 (22,777)  (16,589)  (44,376) (3451) (79,515) (1,847) (1,885)

Unitsin issue 30 November
2021 57,454 122,608 75,179 173,048 39,078 370,904 12,721 23,847
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30 November 2021
USD (BRL USD (AUD
usD AUD NzZD ZAR JPY TRY hedged) hedged)
NAV per Unit asat 30
November 2021 128.03 141.67 14256 2,141.42 1,116 336.76 65.63 92.33

30 November 2020
USD (BRL USD (AUD
usD AUD NZD ZAR PY TRY hedged)  hedged)
Class Class Class Class Class Class Class Class
Unitsin issue 30 November
2019 86,124 168,754 95,043 227,399 44,329 450,348 33,699 28,490
Units issued 370 2,870 1,781 7,416 - 42,911 - -
Units redeemed (15,540)  (26,369) (7,356)  (21,597) (1,800) (62,184) (21,131) (2,758)
Unitsin issue 30 November
2020 70,954 145,255 89,468 213,218 42529 431,075 12,568 25,732

USD (BRL USD (AUD
usD AUD NZD ZAR JPY TRY hedged) hedged)

NAV per Unit asat 30
November 2020 13546 15025  150.87 2,174.27 1,187  307.15 71.09  101.98

5. Unitsin Issue and NAV Per Unit (continued)

Vating Rights

The Trustee will, when required to do so by the terms of the Trust Deed or at the request in writing of unitholders registered as
holding units the aggregate net asset value per unit of which is not less than one-third of the net asset value of all Series Trusts
if what is proposed isaunitholder’'s resolution or at the request in writing of unitholders registered as holding not less than one-
third in number of units of the relevant Series Trust if what is proposed is a Series Trust Resolution, convene a meeting of all
unitholders or unitholder's of a Series Trust, as the case may be, at such time and place set forth in the notice convening the
meeting. Fifteen days written notice of every meeting, specifying the place, day and hour of the meeting and the terms of any
resolution to be proposed at the meeting, will be posted to each unitholder in the case of a meeting of al unitholders or to
unitholder’s of the relevant Series Trust in the case of a meeting of unitholder's of such Series Trust by the Trustee. The record
date for the meeting will be at least twenty-one days before the date specified in the notice concerning the meeting. The
accidental omission to give notice to, or the non-receipt of notice by, any unitholder will not invalidate the proceedings at any
meeting. Any director or other authorised official of the Trustee or of the Manager will be entitled to attend and speak at any
meeting. The quorum requirements will be two unitholders unless there is only one unitholder in which case the quorum will be
that one unitholder. At any meeting any resolution put to the vote of the meeting will be decided by a poll which will be taken
inwriting and if approved by unitholders holding units the aggregate net asset value per unit of which is at least 50% of the net
asset value of al Series Trusts if what is proposed is a unitholder’s resolution or the unitholders holding at least one half in
number of units of the relevant Series Trust in issue if what is proposed is a Series Trust resolution, the result of a poll will be
deemed to be the resolution of the meeting. The net asset value calculation with regard to the unitholder’s resolution will be
undertaken as at the valuation point on the relevant valuation day immediately preceding the day of the meeting. On a poll
votes may be given either personally or by proxy.

Suspension of Units

The Trustee in its absolute discretion may suspend the calculation of the issue and repurchase of units of such Series Trust
and/or extend the period for the payment of repurchase monies to persons who have submitted units of such Series Trust for
repurchase for the whole or any part of a period:
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a) during which any stock exchange, commodities exchange, futures exchange or over-the-counter market on which any

significant portion of the Investments of such Series Trust is listed, quoted, traded or dedlt in is closed (other than
customary weekend and holiday closing) or trading on any such exchange or market is restricted or suspended; or

b) when circumstances exist as aresult of which in the opinion of the Manager it is not reasonably practicable for such Series
Trust to dispose of Investments or as a result of which any such disposal would be materially prejudicia to unitholder’'s
of such Series Trust; or

¢) when a breakdown occurs in any of the means normally employed in ascertaining the value of Investments or the
net asset value of such Series Trust or when for any other reason the value of any of the Investments or other assets or
the net asset value of such Series Trust cannot in the opinion of the Manager reasonably or fairly be ascertained; or

d) during which the redemption or realisation of such Series Trust's Investments or the transfer of funds involved in
such redemption or realisation cannot in the opinion of the Manager be effected at normal prices or norma rates of
exchange; or

€) during which the business operations of the Trustee or the Manager in relation to the operations of
such Series Trust are substantially interrupted or closed as a result of or arising from pestilence, acts of war, terrorism,
insurrection, revolution, civil unrest, riot, strikes or acts of God.

All unitholders of such Series Trust will be notified in writing of any such suspension within 30 days of the suspension and will
be promptly notified upon termination of such suspension.

6. Soft Commissions

There were no soft commission arrangements involving the Manager and the Administrator of the Series Trust during the
financial years ended 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020.

7. Financial Instruments and Associated Risks

The Series Trust's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks - market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and
market price risk), credit/counterparty risk, and liquidity risk, which are discussed in this note.

Daiwa Asset Management Services Ltd. (Cayman) is the Manager of the Series Trust. The Manager is responsible under the
Trust Deed for the management of the investment and re-investment of the assets of each Series Trust, the exercise of the
power to borrow money in respect of each Series Trust, for the issue and repurchase of units of each Series Trust and the risk
management of each Series Trust.

(8Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financia instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk consists of three types of risk, interest rate risk, currency risk and market price risk.

The Series Trust trades in financial instruments, taking positions in traded and over-the-counter derivatives to take advantage
of short-term market movements in bonds and in bond markets. The Series Trust may therefore buy or sell forwards currency
contracts, options and financial futures. It may do so within defined limits.

For the financial year ended 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020, the Series Trust held open derivative forward
currency contract positions. Please refer to below and pages 20 and 21 for details of these.

All securities investments present a risk of loss of capital. The Investment Manager moderates this risk through a careful
selection of securities and other financial instruments within specified limits as per the investment objective of the Series Trust.
Maximum risk resulting from financial instrumentsis determined by the fair value of the financia instruments.

Market risk is monitored on adaily basis by the Investment Manager.
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(i)Currency Risk

Currency risk is defined as the risk that the fair value of afinancial instrument will fluctuate because of the changesin foreign
exchange rates. The risk arises on financial instruments that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency in
which they are measured. The Investment Manager uses derivative instruments such as forward currency contracts to hedge
against the currency risk of the non-base classes and/or to speculate on currencies other than the class base currencies. Any
gaing/losses on these forward currency contracts are allocated to these specific units in issue. All currency transactions are
hedged via forward currency contracts with a maturity of between 1-3 months.

In connection with AUD, NZD, ZAR, JPY and TRY units, the Investment Manager will seek to reduce foreign exchange risk
by selling US dollars and buying the base currency of the units using currency hedging transactions. For USD (BRL hedged)
and USD (AUD hedged) units, currency hedging transactions will be entered into for the account of holders of such units by
selling US dollars and buying the relevant hedged currency. As a result of such currency hedging transactions, investors in
such classes of units will be exposed to the currency exchange rate between the relevant hedged currency and US dollars being
the class base currency of such classes of units. The following forward currency exchange contracts were held by the Series
Trust asat 30 November 2021and 30 November 2020.

30 November 2021

Forward currency exchange contracts - unrealised gains

Unrealised
Buy Currency Buy Amount Sell Currency Sell Amount Maturity Date GainUSD
AUD Class
usD 170,239 AUD 238,994 17/12/2021 733
JPY Class
JPY 44,511,333 usD 390,803 17/12/2021 1,379
usD 5,299 JPY 599,827 17/12/2021 14
7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)
(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Currency Risk (continued)
30 November 2021 (continued)
Forward currency exchange contracts - unrealised gains (continued)

Unrealised
Buy Currency Buy Amount Sell Currency Sell Amount Maturity Date Gain USD
NZD Class
usD 99,690 NzD 146,209 17/12/2021 477
TRY Class
UsSb 174,314 TRY 2,187,006 17/12/2021 11,058
USD (AUD hedged) Class
usD 30,609 AUD 42,971 17/12/2021 132
USD (BRL hedged) Class
usSD 19,600 BRL 109,964 17/12/2021 204
Total unrealised gain on forward currency exchange contracts 13,997

Forward currency exchange contracts - unrealised losses
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Unrealised
Buy Currency Buy Amount Sell Currency Sell Amount Maturity Date Loss USD
AUD Class
AUD 17,766,445 usb 12,894,600 17/12/2021 (293,750)
NZD Class
NzZD 11,020,812 usb 7,732,373 17/12/2021 (254,030)
TRY Class
TRY 127,478,547 usb 11,238,380 17/12/2021 (1,731,354)
USD (AUD hedged) Class
AUD 3,280,744 usb 2,381,111 17/12/2021 (54,259)
USD (BRL hedged) Class
BRL 4,850,707 usb 867,051 17/12/2021 (11,480)
ZAR Class
usb 311,838 ZAR 5,078,026 17/12/2021 (4,261)
ZAR 381,073,599 usD 24,182,593 17/12/2021 (463,352)
Total unrealised loss on forward currency exchange contracts (2,812,486)

The counterparty for all of the above forward currency exchange contractsis The Bank of New York Mellon.

110/183



EDINETOOOO
Oo0ooDOo0ooDooooo00ooo0ooo0oo00b0o00noOoO(ELs791)
Ooooooooooooooooooad

7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)

(i) Currency Risk (continued)

30 November 2020

Forward currency exchange contracts - unrealised gains

Unredlised
Buy Currency Buy Amount Sell Currency Sell Amount Maturity Date Gain USD
AUD Class
AUD 21,739,007 usD 15,800,190 18/12/2020 221,715
NZD Class
NzD 13,461,222 usD 9,292,789 18/12/2020 168,131
TRY Class
usD 24,101 TRY 183,216 18/12/2020 854
USD (AUD hedged) Class
AUD 3,575,875 usD 2,598,992 18/12/2020 36,478
ZAR Class
uUsSb 85,707 ZAR 1,313,654 18/12/2020 1,049
ZAR 462,671,270 usD 29,774,629 18/12/2020 43,067
Total unrealised gain on forward currency exchange contracts 471,294
Forward currency exchange contracts - unrealised losses

Unrealised
Buy Currency Buy Amount Sell Currency Sell Amount Maturity Date Loss USD
JPY Class
JPY 50,286,352 USD) 484,352 18/12/2020 (1,868)
NZD Class
usD 10,542 NzD 15,075 18/12/2020 (52)
TRY Class
TRY 132,390,924 usb 17,415,417 18/12/2020 (617,065)
usD 80,883 TRY 649,397 18/12/2020 (1,549)
USD (BRL hedged) Class
BRL 4,809,166 US'D) 905,319 18/12/2020 (12,617)
usD 11,368 BRL 61,305 18/12/2020 (12
Total unrealised loss on forward currency exchange contracts (633,163)

The counterparty for all of the above forward currency exchange contracts was The Bank of New York Mellon.
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7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Currency Risk (continued)

Currency Risk sensitivity analysis

At 30 November 2021had the US dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to the Australian dollar, Brazilian real, Japanese yen, New
Zedland dollar, Turkish liraand South African rand the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units would have
decreased/(increased) by the amounts shown below:

Sensitivity 2021
Monetary Non-Monetary Currency Exposure Movement

UsD UsD UsD % UsD

AUD 14,704,420 - 14,704,420 5% 735,221
Total 14,704,420 - 14,704,420 735,221
UsD UsD UsD % UsD

BRL 836,175 - 836,175 5% 41,809
Total 836,175 - 836,175 41,809
USsD USsD USsD % USsD

JPY 386,732 - 386,732 5% 19,337
Total 386,732 - 386,732 19,337
UsD UsD UsD % UsD

NzD 7,174,478 - 7,174,478 5% 358,724
Total 7,174,478 - 7,174,478 358,724
uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

TRY 9,425,657 - 9,425,657 5% 471,283
Total 9,425,657 - 9,425,657 471,283
UsD UsD UsD % UsD

ZAR 23,284,104 - 23,284,104 5% 1,164,205
Total 23,284,104 - 23,284,104 1,164,205

The above senditivity analysis is based on assumptions of a reasonable shift in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant. Actual trading results may differ from the above sensitivity analysis and the difference could be material.
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7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Currency Risk (continued)

Currency Risk sensitivity analysis (continued)

At 30 November 2020had the US dollar strengthened by 5% in relation to the Australian dollar, Brazilian real, Japanese yen, New
Zedland dollar, Turkish liraand South African rand the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units would have
decreased/(increased) by the amounts shown below:

Sensitivity 2020
Monetary Non-Monetary Currency Exposure Movement

uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

AUD 18,654,134 - 18,654,134 5% 932,707
Tota 18,654,134 - 18,654,134 932,707
uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

BRL 881,323 - 881,323 5% 44,066
Tota 881,323 - 881,323 44,066
uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

JPY 482,247 - 482,247 5% 24,112
Tota 482,247 - 482,247 24112
uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

NzD 9,449,955 - 9,449,955 5% 472,498
Tota 9,449,955 - 9,449,955 472,498
uUsD uUsD uUsD % uUsD

TRY 16,827,733 - 16,827,733 5% 841,387
Tota 16,827,733 - 16,827,733 841,387
usD usD usD % usD

ZAR 29,810,698 - 29,810,698 5% 1,490,535
Tota 29,810,698 - 29,810,698 1,490,535

The above sensitivity analysis is based on assumptions of a reasonable shift in foreign exchange rates, with all other variables
held constant. Actual trading results may differ from the above sensitivity analysis and the difference could be material.

(ii)Interest Risk

The majority of the Series Trust's financial assets are interest bearing. As aresult the Series Trust is subject to exposure to fair
value interest rate risk, which is the risk that the fair value of financial assets will change due to fluctuations in the prevailing
levels of market interest rates. The Series Trust relies on economic data to enable the Series Trust to take an interest rate view.
This is gathered via Bloomberg and monitored daily. In addition to this, the views of various sources including investment
banks, central banks and other asset managers are taken into account. Technical analysisis used to a lesser degree and would
be useful when analysing interest rate reliant instruments such as treasury bond prices, swap prices and currencies. This extra
data would be looked at as part of the bigger picture along with current economic developments. Interest rate risk would be
managed depending on which stage of the economic cycle the Series Trust isin and whether current investing yields reflect the
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view on the future direction of interest rates. Generally, it is the policy to have a balanced portfolio with a moderate tilt

towards a particular view point. In doing this unexpected shocks to the portfolio can be minimised and as the interest rate
environment becomes clearer the Series Trust can add to positions as and when the Series Trust feels there is value to be
gained.

Interest rate exposure is calculated by calculating the portfolio duration. Duration deviations from the benchmark are compared
and addressed daily by the Investment Manager.
7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Interest Risk (continued)

Madified Duration

Thisisthe change in the value of afixed income security that will result from a percentage change in interest rates. Duration is
stated in years. For example, a8.90 year duration means the bond will decrease in value by 8.90% if interest rates rise by 1%
and increase in value by 8.90% if interest rates fall by 1%. Duration is a weighted measure of the length of time the bond will
pay out. Unlike maturity, duration takes into account interest payments that occur throughout the course of holding the bond.
Basically, duration is aweighted average of the maturity of all the income streams from a bond or portfolio of bonds.

Investors use duration to measure the volatility of the bond. Generally, the higher the duration (the longer an investor needs to
wait for the bulk of the payments), the more its price will drop as interest rates go up. Of course, with the added risk comes
greater expected returns. If an investor expects interest rates to fall during the course of time the bond is held, a bond with a
long duration would be appealing because the bond's price would increase more than comparable bonds with shorter durations.

Limitations

One of the limitations of duration as a measure of interest rate/price sensitivity isthat it is alinear measure. That is, it assumes
that for a certain percentage change in interest rates that an equal change in market value will occur. However asinterest rates
change the price of abond is not likely to change linearly but instead would change over some curved or convex function of
interest rates.

Sensitivity Analysis

30 November 2021
Given a Modified Duration of 8.90, a reasonable shift in interest rates of 1%, based on the portfolio’s total market value of
USD62,985,209 would cause the value of the Series Trust to change by approximately USD5,605,684.

The following table summarizes the Series Trust's exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the table are the Series Trust's
assets and trading liabilities at fair values, categorized by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Tota asa 30

Non-interest November

Uptolyear 1to5Syears Over 5 years bearing 2021

usD usbD usb usb usb

Cash and cash equivaents 2,327,927 - - - 2,327,927
Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss - 9,106,813 53,878,396 13,998 62,999,207

Interest income receivable - - - 816,054 816,054

Capital units receivable - - - 262 262

Total assets 2,327,927 9,106,813 53,878,396 830,314 66,143,450

Financia liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - - - (2,812,486) (2,812,486)
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Total asa 30

Non-interest November

Upto1lyear 1to5years Over 5 years bearing 2021

USsD usD usD usD usD

Capital units payable - - - (286,147) (286,147)

Accrued expenses - - - (145,114) (145,114)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable

participating units) - - - (3,243,747) (3,243,747)

2,327,927 9,106,813 53,878,396 (2,413,433) 62,899,703

Interest sensitivity gap
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7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Interest Risk (continued)
Sensitivity Anaysis (continued)

30 November 2020
Given a Modified Duration of 9.11, a reasonable shift in interest rates of 1%, based on the portfolio’s total market value of
USD79,854,097 would cause the value of the Series Trust to change by approximately USD7,274,708.

The following table summarises the Series Trust's exposure to interest rate risks. Included in the table are the Series Trust's
assets and trading liabilities at fair values, categorised by the earlier of contractual re-pricing or maturity dates.

Nor-interest Total asat 30

Upto1year 1to5years Over 5 years bearing November 2020
usb usb usb usb usb
Cash and cash equivaents 5,680,366 - - - 5,680,366
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss - 14,946,126 64,907,971 471,294 80,325,391
Interest income receivable - - - 885,184 885,184
Capital units receivable - - - 9,531 9,531
Total assets 5,680,366 14,946,126 64,907,971 1,366,009 86,900,472
Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss - - - (633,163) (633,163)
Capital units payable - - - (47,032) (47,032)
Accrued expenses - - - (157,229) (157,229)
Total liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable
participating units) - - - (837,424) (837,424)
5,680,366 14,946,126 64,907,971 528,585 86,063,048

Interest sensitivity gap

(iii)Market pricerisk

The Series Trust's debt securities are susceptible to market price risk arising from uncertainties about future prices of the
instruments. Market risk is monitored on a daily basis by the Investment Manager.

At 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020, the overall market exposures were as follows:

% of Net Assets % of Net Assets

Fair Vaue a Fair Value Fair Vaue a Fair Vaue

2021 2021 2020 2020

usD % usD %

European Bonds designated at fair value 18,271,366 29.05 27,142,387 3154
Indonesian Bonds designated at fair value 8,932,094 14.20 9,294,201 10.80
Mexican Bonds designated at fair value 10,143,965 16.12 10,986,644 12.76
Panama Bonds designated at fair value 2,866,875 4.56 3,145,000 3.65
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% of Net Assets % of Net Assets

Fair Vaue a Fair Value Fair Vaue a Fair Vaue

2021 2021 2020 2020

usbD % usDbD %

Philippine Bonds designated at fair value 1,438,750 2.29 5,287,097 6.15
South African Bonds designated at fair value 4,777,815 7.59 2,418,830 281
South American Bonds designated at fair value 16,554,344 26.33 19,375,094 2252
United States Bonds designated at fair value - - 2,204,844 2.56
Total 62,985,209 100.14 79,854,097 92.79

7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(a) Market Risk (continued)
(i) Market price risk (continued)

Asthe Series Trust holds the magjority of itsinvestments in fixed income securities the market risk sensitivity analysisis
covered by the interest rate risk sensitivity analysis.

The table below is a summary of significant sector concentrations within the portfolio of investments.

30 November 2021 30 Navember 2020
Sector Series Trust's bond portfolio (%) Series Trust's bond portfolio (%)
Government Agency Bonds 6.66% 5.23%
Government Bonds 93.34% 94.77%
Total 100.00% 100.00%

(b) Liquidity Risk

Not al investments invested in by the Series Trust will be listed or rated and consequently liquidity may be low. Moreover, the
accumulation and disposal of holdings in some investments may be time consuming and may need to be conducted at
unfavourable prices. The Series Trust may also encounter difficulties in disposing of assets at their fair price due to adverse
market conditions leading to limited liquidity. Thereis athree working day notice period given of all redemptions to enable the
sale of the securities. However, there is an overdraft facility with The Bank of New York Mellon of up to 10% of the Series
Trust's NAV which enables the Series Trust to cover any exceptionally large outflow when markets are thin or unfavourable.

The Trustee in its absol ute discretion may suspend the calculation of NAV  of the Series Trust and /or the issue and repurchase
of the Units of such Series Trust pursuant to Clauses 7 and 14 of the Trust Deed. Daiwa Asset Management Services Ltd
(Cayman) in its capacity as the Manager would follow the clauses mentioned in the Trust Deed and the Offering Memorandum
to deal with the issues related to sudden or unexpected situations arising if need be.

Redemption notifications are received T-3 London time and subscriptions T-4 potentially on a daily basis (apart from on Irish,
UK, Japanese and the relevant local currency bank holidays). There is no holdback provision. Securities can be sold to fund
redemptions.

The Series Trust's assets comprise mainly readily realisable securities. The Investment Manager will normally keep an
allocation of cash to meet pending liabilities that may arise from time to time. Please see pages 33to 34 for Portfolio
Statements which show all readily realisable securities.

Liquidity risk ismonitored on a daily basis by the Investment Manager.

The table below sets forth the payables of the Series Trust as at 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020.

Over 1
Less than 1 month month
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As at 30 November 2021 usD usD
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (2,812,486) -
Capita units payable (286,147) -
Accrued expenses (145,114) -
Redeemabl e units (62,899,703) -
Total financia liabilities (66,143,450) -

7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(b) Liquidity Risk (continued)
Over 1
Lessthan 1 month month
As at 30 November 2020 usD usb
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (633,163) -
Capital units payable (47,032) -
Accrued expenses (157,229) -
Redeemabl e units (86,063,048) -
Total financid liabilities (86,900,472) -
(c)Credit Risk

There can be no assurance that issuers of the Investments in which the Series Trust invests will not be subject to credit
difficulties, leading to the loss of some or al of the sums invested in such investments or payments due on such investments.
The Series Trust will also be exposed to a credit risk in relation to the counterparties with whom it trades or places margin or
collateral in respect of transactionsin financial derivative instruments and may bear the risk of counterparty default.

The exposure to credit risk as at the reporting date is analysed on the table overleaf for the financial year ended 30 November
2021. The Investment Manager has undertaken a full due diligence of The Bank of New York Mellon. This was undertaken
before the Series Trust launched and entailed a visit by the Investment Manager to the Dublin and Brussels offices of The Bank
of New York Mellon. The Investment Manager compiled a due diligence report detailing systems, team structures etc within
The Bank of New York Mellon.

Thereis an unrealised gain of USD13,998 on forward currency exchange contracts at 30 November 2021 (30 November 2020:
USD471,294) which is subject to credit risk.

The forward currency contracts are held with The Bank of New York Mellon, which is a reputable company and has a strong
credit rating. The Bank of New York Mellon has a credit rating of AA- with S& P Global Ratings, Aa2 with Moody’s and AA
with Fitch.

At 30 November 2021and 30 November 2020, cash and cash equivalents are placed in custody with The Bank of New Y ork
Mellon.

At 30 November 2021and 30 November 2020 the government bonds are held by the custodian which is The Bank of New
York Méellon.

The Investment Manager is satisfied that the risk associated with the custodian is minimal.

Credit risk is monitored on adaily basis by the Investment Manager.
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7. Financia Instruments and Associated Risks (continued)

(c) Credit Risk (continued)

As at 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020the break-down of bond's credit rating provided by Moody's and S&P
Global Ratings was as the table below.

Portfolio by rating category % of Net Assets % of Net Assets
Rating 30 November 2021 30 November 2020
A3 - 2.56
Aaa - 4.19
B2 17.90 16.52
B3 0.95 0.64
Bal 1.18 12.85
Ba2 15.27 21.63
Ba3 4.97 13.93
Baal 15.89 4.24
Baa2 30.38 13.60
Baa3 11.72 -
Caal 1.88 2.63
Tota 100.14 92.79
(d) Other Risk

Market and Geopolitical Risk

The fair value of the securities the Series Trustholds may change due to economic and other events that affect markets
generaly, as well as those that affect particular regions, countries, industries, companies or governments. These price
movements, sometimes called volatility, may be greater or less depending on the types of securities the Series Trustowns and
the markets in which the securities trade. The increasing interconnectivity between global economies and financial markets
increases the likelihood that events or conditions in one region or financial market may adversely impact issuers in a different
country, region or financia market. Securities in the Series Trust's portfolio may underperform due to inflation (or
expectations for inflation), interest rates, and global demand for particular products or resources. The occurrence of global
events similar to those in recent years, such as the COVID-19 pandemic, other pandemics, epidemics, terrorist attacks around
the world, natural disasters, social and political discord or debt crises and downgrades, among others, may also result in market
volatility and may have long term effects on both local and global financial markets. It is difficult to predict when similar
events affecting local or global financial markets may occur, the effects that such events may have and the duration of those
effects. Any such events could have a significant adverse impact on the fair value and risk profile of the Series Trust’s
portfolio.
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8. Financia Instruments a Fair Vaue through Profit or Loss

Fair Value Estimation
The Series Trust is required to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the
inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (as
prices) or indirectly (derived from prices); and

Level 3- Inputsfor the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The determination of what constitutes ‘observable’ requires significant judgement by the Series Trust. The Series Trust
considers observable data to be that market data that is readily available, regularly distributed or updated, reliable and
verifiable, not proprietary, and provided by independent sources that are actively involved in the relevant market.

Furthermore, for those instruments which have significant unobservable inputs (Level 3), the standard requires disclosures on
the transfers into and out of Level 3, a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances, total gains and losses for
the financial period split between those recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and recognised through the
statement of total recognised gains and losses, purchases, sales, issues and settlements, and a sengitivity analysis of
assumptions used in determining the fair value of Level 3 position.
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8. Financia Instruments a Fair Vaue through Profit or Loss(continued)

The value of securities classified as Level 1 at 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020 is as follows:

As at 30 November As at 30 November
2021 2020
Leve 1 Leve 1
usb usb
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Assets
Government Bonds - 2,204,844
Total financia assets - 2,204,844
The value of securities classified as Level 2 at 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020 is as follows:
As at 30 November As at 30 November
2021 2020
Leve 2 Leve 2
usb usb
Designated as at fair value through profit or loss
Financial Assets
Government Agency Bonds 4,200,120 4,176,229
Government Bonds 58,785,089 73,473,024
Unrealised Gain on forward currency exchange contracts 13,998 471,294
Total financia assets 62,999,207 78,120,547
As at 30 November As at 30 November
2021 2020
Leved 2 Leved 2
usb usb
Financia Liabilities
Unrealised Loss on forward currency exchange contracts (2,812,486) (633,163)
Total financid liabilities (2,812,486) (633,163)

There were no transfers between levels for securities held during the financial year ended 30 November 2021 and 30

November 2020. There were no Level 3 securities held during the financial year ended 30 November 2021 and 30 November
2020. The valuation policy for securities classified as Level 2 isdisclosed in Note 2.7.
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9. Net Redlised and Unredlised Gain and Loss

The net gain or loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit and loss shown in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income for the financial year ended 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020 can be analysed as follows:

Financia Year

Financia Year ended ended

30 Naovember 2021 30 November 2020

uUsb uUsb

Net realised loss on investment securities (862,725) (3,215,741)

Net realised loss on foreign currencies and forward currency exchange contracts (173,828) (3,053,237)

Net realised investment loss (1,036,553) (6,268,978)

Net change in unrealised (loss)/gain on investment securities (5,862,382) 4,780,888
Net change in unrealised loss on foreign currencies and forward currency exchange

contracts (3,590,211) (107,013)

Net change in unrealised investment (loss)/gain (9,452,593) 4,673,875

Net loss on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (10,489,146) (1,595,103)

10. Related Party Transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financia or operationa decisions. At 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020 the related parties
were asfollows:

Manager - Daiwa Asset Management Services Ltd. (Cayman)

Investment Manager - Daiwa Asset Management (Europe) Ltd

Investment Adviser and Management Service Providing Company - Daiwa Asset Management Co. Ltd.
Distributor, Agent Company and Unitholder - Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd.

Directors of the Manager - Refer to General Information on page 3.

Trustee and Administrator - BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited.

Sub-Administrator - BNY Mellon Fund Services (Ireland) Designated Activity Company.

Custodian - The Bank of New York Mellon.

The details of the fees for the above are included in Note 3.

At 30 November 2021 and 30 November 2020, the following unitholders had made the following investments in the Series
Trust which were deemed to be Related Parties:
No of Units No of Units % of Total

held at 30 held at 30 Units
November November
Trust Unitholder 2021 2020
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Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 57,454 70,954 100%
Currency USD

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 122,608 145,255 100%
Currency AUD

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 75,179 89,468 100%
Currency NZD

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 173,048 213,218 100%
Currency ZAR

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 39,078 42,529 100%
Currency JPY

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd 370,904 431,075 100%
Currency TRY

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Dawa Securities Co. Ltd 12,721 12,568 100%
Currency USD (BRL hedged)

Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund - The Tower of ~ Da@wa Securities Co. Ltd 23847 25,132 100%

Currency USD (AUD hedged)
11. Taxation

Under the current laws of the Cayman Islands, there are no income, estate, corporation, capital gains, or other Cayman Islands
taxes payable by the Trust. As a result, no provision for taxes has been made in the financial statements. The Trust may be
subject to foreign withholding taxes on certain interest, dividends and capital gains.

12. Exchangerates

Foreign currency transactions are trandated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the trandation at
financial year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.

At 30 November 2021the exchange rates used were as follows:

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of Changesin
Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable Participating

Statement of Financia Position Units

At 30 November 2021 Average for the financial year ended 30 November 2021

AUD 1.410338 usb AUD 1.326206 usb

BRL 5.648650 (USiD) BRL 5.351041 usD

JPY 113.545000 ush JPY 108.966370 usD

NzD 1.473405 usDh NzD 1.409280 usb

TRY 13.277750 uUsD TRY 8.396243 usb

ZAR 16.023750 usb ZAR 14.702480 usb

At 30 November 2020 the exchange rates used were as follows:

Statement of Comprehensive Income and Statement of
Changes in Net Assets Attributable to Holders of Redeemable
Statement of Financial Position Participating Units
At 30 November 2020 Average for the financial year ended 30 November 2020
AUD 1.357128 usD AUD 1.464057 usb
BRL 5.386150 usb BRL 5.064594 usb
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JPY 104.275000 usD JPY 107.229959 usb
NzZD 1.422880 usb NZD 1.550080 usb
TRY 7.822250 usb TRY 6.864548 usb
ZAR 15.476250 usD ZAR 16.417762 usb

13. Purchaseand Saes

A complete statement of changes of the portfolio will be made available to unitholders on request.
14, Vaudtion Date

The financial statements have been prepared on the last fund's valuation date of the financial year which has been calculated
on 30 November 2021 with a price of that date. Comparatives at 30 November 2020 have been prepared based on the last fund
svaluation date of the preceding financial year which were calculated on 30 November 2020 with a price of that date.

15. Significant events during the financid year

There were no significant events during the financial year.

16. Post Statement of Financia Position events

The ongoing Russia Ukraine conflict which began 24 February 2022, has caused significant volatility in Russian and Ukraine
securities. The rapid development of this situation and uncertainty regarding potential sanctions precludes any prediction as to
the ultimate adverse impact of the Russia Ukraine conflict on the value and liquidity of securities with a nexus to Russia. The
Trustee is monitoring developments related to the Russia Ukraine conflict, including current and potential future interventions
of foreign governments and economic sanctions against Russia, in order to assess their impact on any Russian and Ukraine
securities held by the Series Trust.

The Fund sold the following positions Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond 'REGS' 5.625% 04/04/2042 on 21 December 2021
and Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond 'REGS' 5.875% 16/09/2043 on 25 February 2022.

There were no other subsequent events since the financial year end, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

17. Approvd of financia statements

Thefinancia statements were approved by the Trustee on 7 April 2022,
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Portfolio Statement
asa 30 November 2021

Nomina  Description Market Vaue % of Net
Holding usbD Assets
Government Agency Bonds (30 November 2020: USD4,176,229)
300,000 Comision Federal de Electricidad 'REGS' 4.750% 23/02/2027 329,185 0.52
700,000  Comision Federal de Electricidad 'REGS' 4.875% 15/01/2024 745,160 1.18
1,000,000  Petroleos Mexicanos 6.500% 13/03/2027 1,022,647 1.63
2,000,000  Petroleos Mexicanos 6.875% 04/08/2026 2,103,128 3.34
Total Government Agency Bonds 4,200,120 6.67

Government Bonds (30 November 2020: USD75,677,868)
3,380,040  Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up Coupon

0.500% 09/07/2030 1,101,893 175
6,019,957  Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up Coupon
1.125% 09/07/2035 1,818,027 2.89
2,400,000  Argentine Republic Government International Bond Step-Up Coupon
2.500% 09/07/2041 777,600 1.24
800,000  Brazilian Government International Bond 4.250% 07/01/2025 842,000 134
300,000  Brazilian Government International Bond 4.750% 14/01/2050 258,000 0.41
2,200,000 Brazilian Government International Bond 5.625% 21/02/2047 2,123,000 3.38
300,000  Brazilian Government International Bond 8.250% 20/01/2034 389,625 0.62
1,000,000  Brazilian Government International Bond 8.750% 04/02/2025 1,211,250 1.93
1,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond 5.000% 15/06/2045 909,405 1.45
2,000,000 Colombia Government International Bond 5.625% 26/02/2044 1,945,122 3.09
1,900,000 Colombia Government International Bond 7.375% 18/09/2037 2,199,132 3.50
700,000  Croatia Government International Bond 'REGS' 5.500% 04/04/2023 740,543 1.18
500,000 Hungary Government International Bond 7.625% 29/03/2041 816,880 1.30
1,500,000  Indonesia Government International Bond 'REGS' 4.350% 08/01/2027 1,677,098 2.67
1,000,000  Indonesia Government International Bond 'REGS' 4.625% 15/04/2043 1,147,800 1.83
1,500,000  Indonesia Government International Bond 'REGS 5.250% 17/01/2042 1,845,015 293
2,000,000  Indonesia Government International Bond 'REGS' 6.750% 15/01/2044 2,907,618 4.62
900,000  Indonesia Government International Bond 'REGS' 7.750% 17/01/2038 1,354,563 215
500,000 Mexico Government International Bond 5.000% 27/04/2051 552,914 0.88
2,500,000 Mexico Government International Bond 7.500% 08/04/2033 3,424,442 5.44
1,750,000 Mexico Government International Bond 'GMTN' 5.750% 12/10/2110 1,966,489 3.13
1,700,000  Panama Government International Bond 3.750% 16/03/2025 1,798,125 2.86
1,000,000  Panama Government International Bond 4.500% 15/05/2047 1,068,750 1.70
800,000  Peruvian Government International Bond 3.550% 10/03/2051 794,734 1.26
2,000,000  Peruvian Government International Bond 4.125% 25/08/2027 2,184,556 3.47
1,000,000  Philippine Government International Bond 7.750% 14/01/2031 1,438,750 2.29
3,000,000  Republic of South Africa Government International Bond 4.300%
12/10/2028 2,986,857 4.75
900,000 Republic of South Africa Government International Bond 4.850%
27/09/2027 933,929 1.48
1,000,000  Republic of South Africa Government International Bond 5.000%
12/10/2046 857,029 1.36
1,000,000  Romanian Government International Bond 'REGS' 4.875% 22/01/2024 1,066,607 1.70
400,000  Romanian Government International Bond 'REGS' 5.125% 15/06/2048 454,540 0.72
1,400,000  Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond 'REGS' 5.625% 04/04/2042 1,813,981 2.88

Portfolio Statement (continued)
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as at 30 November 2021

Nomina  Description Market Vaue % of Net
Holding uUsbD Assets
Government Bonds (30 November 2020: USD75,677,868) (continued)
3,000,000  Russian Foreign Bond - Eurobond 'REGS' 5.875% 16/09/2043 4,035,708 6.42
2,600,000  Turkey Government International Bond 4.875% 16/04/2043 1,949,509 3.10
3,000,000  Turkey Government International Bond 6.125% 24/10/2028 2,857,967 454
1,550,000 Turkey Government International Bond 11.875% 15/01/2030 1,999,895 3.18
800,000  Ukraine Government International Bond 'REGS 7.375% 25/09/2032 752,872 1.20
600,000  Ukraine Government International Bond 'REGS 7.750% 01/09/2026 600,000 0.95
1,100,000  Ukraine Government International Bond 'REGS' 9.750% 01/11/2028 1,182,864 1.88
Total Government Bonds 58,785,089 93.47
Total Portfolio of Investments (Nate 7) 62,985,209 100.14
Other Net Assets (including unredised gain/(loss) on forward currency
exchange contracts (Note 6, 7)) (85,506) -0.14
Net assets atributable to holders of redeemable participating units 62,899,703 100.00

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financia statements.
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2022
7,866,847 962,823
1,518,416 185,839
- 6,348,431 776,984
54,443
116.61 14,272
2022
14,583,515 1,341,683
27,169 2,500
- 14,556,346 1,339,184
112,881
128.95 11,863
NZ
2022
8,581,612 732,269
13,805 1,178
- 8,567,807 731,001
65,807
130.20 11,110
2022
332,396,787 2,805,429
3,742,606 31,588
- 328,654,181 2,773,841
165,604
1,984.58 16,750
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2022
39,626,800
0
39,626,800
39,078
1,014
2022
112,201,769 938,007
395,231 3,304
111,806,538 934,703
339,064
329.75 2,757
2022
876,048 107,220
0 0
876,048 107,220
11,951
73.30 8,971
2022
2,115,484 258,914
0 0
2,115,484 258,914
23,747
89.08 10,903
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1.F.S.C.
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2022
5,000 5,000
2005

2022
2022

2,309
3,247
427
1,304
667
9,947
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2020 31 2021 31
76,046,433 78,134,852
1,344,521 -
- 945,500
1,186,844 _
- 3,165,883
78,577,798 82,246,235
32,649 33,213
32,649 33,213
32,649 33,213
78,610,447 82,279,448
1,891,000 1,891,000
1,891,000 1,891,000
1,891,000 1,891,000
50,000,000 50,000,000
26,720,455 30,388,892
26,720,455 30,388,892
76,720,455 80,388,892
1,008 444
1,008 444
76,719,447 80,388,448
78,610,447 82,279,448
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2019 } [ 2020 1
2020 31 2021 31
20,111,712 8,049,742 *
20,111,712 8,049,742
1,462,946 791,226
3,491,705 4,048,717
515 250
36,103 801
4,991,269 4,840,994
15,120,443 3,208,748
- 454,448
234,449 5,241
259,985 -
494,434 459,689
8,071,316 -
8,071,316 -
7,543,561 3,668,437
7,543,561 3,668,437

7,543,561 3,668,437
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2019 2020 31
50,000,000 169,176,894 169,176,894 219,176,894 360 360 219,176,534
150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000 150,000,000
7,543,561 7,543,561 7,543,561 7,543,561
648 648 648
- 142,456,439 142,456,439 142,456,439 648 648 142,457,087
50,000,000 26,720,455 26,720,455 76,720,455 1,008 1,008 76,719,447
2020 2021 31
50,000,000 26,720,455 26,720,455 76,720,455 1,008 1,008 76,719,447
3,668,437 3,668,437 3,668,437 3,668,437
564 564 564
- 3,668,437 3,668,437 3,668,437 564 564 3,669,001
50,000,000 30,388,892 30,388,892 80,388,892 444 444 80,388,448
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Independent auditor's report

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund
(Currency Select) - The Tower of Currency

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in al material respects, the financial position of Daiwa Emerging Bond
Fund (Currency Select) - The Tower of Currency (a series trust of Daiwa Fund Series) (the Series Trust) as at 30 November
2021, and its financial performance for the year then ended in accordance with accounting standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland, including FRS102 "the Financial
Report Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland”.

What we have audited
The Series Trust's financial statements comprise:

the statement of financial position as at 30 November 2021;

the portfolio statement as at 30 November 2021;

the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;

the statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating units for the year
then ended; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Basisfor opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in theAuditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Series Trust in accordance with the International Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(including International Independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA
Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with the IESBA Code.

Other information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Annual Report (but does not include
the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon).

Our opinion on the financia statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.
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Independent auditor'sreport (continued)

To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund
(Currency Select) - The Tower of Currency

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility isto read the other information identified above and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting
standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council and promulgated by the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Ireland,
including FRS102 "the Financial Report Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland”, and for such
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Series Trust or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assuranceis a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individualy or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financia statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a materia
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Series Trust’s internal control.
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| ndependent auditor's report (continued)
To BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited solely in its capacity as trustee of Daiwa Emerging Bond Fund
(Currency Select) - The Tower of Currency

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Series Trust's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Series Trust to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for BNY Mellon Fund Management (Cayman) Limited
solely in its capacity as trustee of the Series Trust in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter and for no other
purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to
whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

7 April 2022
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